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Summary Paragraph

The East Ely Depot, erected in 1907, originally served Nevada Northern Railway passen­ 
gers and freight. The building is a vernacular interpretation with style elements 
borrowed from both the Mission Revival and Renaissance Revival, The first floor is 
currently leased to Bear Creek Mining, a subsidiary of Kennecott Minerals Corporation, 
for offices. The second floor has been vacant since 1981. The building is in excellent 
condition-

Site

Ely and East Ely are adjacent small towns located in White Pine County at the junction 
of US 50, US 6 and US 93. They lie 320 miles east of Reno, 190 miles southeast of 
Elko, and 289 miles north of Las Vegas. The East Ely depot sits at the end of llth 
Street and dominates the entire East Ely area* The building is rectangular with its 
long sides facing north and south» The depot 
is located immediately south of the railroad tracks and draws access from llth Street 
east. It is flanked by the Freight House to the west and the Transportation building 
to the east. The depot is not landscaped.

Architectural Description 

Exterior;

In many communities, especially those in rural areas, a vernacular style evolves. De­ 
tailing becomes stylized and abstracted, and retains little reference to "high style" 
types. In the case of the East Ely Depot, it is obvious that the building's design is 
comprised of a variety of borrowed, yet homogenous units,

The depot is rectangular in shape, and two stories in height, with a high-pitched hipped 
roof. The roof is covered with asbestos, though originally it was covered with a rub­ 
berized shingle material. The roof overhangs the building and is ornamented with a 
molded cornice and exposed and extended curved rafters under the eaves.

The building rests on a stone foundation. The ground level of the building is rusti­ 
cated stone and exhibits a Renaissance Revival stylistic derivation. The rectangular 
stone blocks were quarried from the Cherry Creek area located approximately 46 miles north 
of the depot. The stone, laid in an English bond with alternating layers of stretchers 
and headers, is a soft tan color.

A Mission Revival style curvilinear gable, pierced with a triple arched vent, dominates 
both the north and south faces of the building. It is interesting to note that whereas 
the original plans for the depot indicate the use of galvanized iron for the copings of 
the facade, actual construction shows that stone was used. A predominant decorative 
feature on each curvilinear gable is the name Easy Ely, with each letter contained within 
a circle. Stone was also used for the lettering although galvanized iron was called for 
originally.
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Summary Paragraph

The Nevada Northern Railroad Passenger Depot of East Ely, built in 1907 S is significant 
both culturally and architecturally. Architecturally, it is an interesting and well- 
designed example of a vernacular railroad depot which combines Mission Revival and 
Renaissance Revival stylistic elements. Culturally, the depot is a highly usable re­ 
minder of the major impact the railroad had on this area. The establishment of the 
Nevada Northern Railroad provided the basis for White Pine County's economic development. 
It allowed ore mined at Ruth, seven miles west of Ely, to be transported to McGill, thir­ 
teen miles north of Ely, for smelting. It was then shipped via the Nevada Northern to 
the Main Southern Pacific line, where it was transported to refineries and markets in the 
East, The copper industry was responsible for White Pine County's prosperity for much 
of the twentieth century, and it determined the character of the communities of Ely, 
Ruth, and McGill. The high design quality of this depot reflects the railroad's prom­ 
inence when it began its operations in 1907«

Original and Subsequent Uses

In its early years the lower floor of the depot was used as a ticket office, baggage 
area, and divided waiting room with men's and women's benches. The upper floor housed 
offices of the Nevada Northern personnel. Passenger service ceased in 1941, The first 
floor was used for storage until it was leased to the Mt, Wheeler Power Company Board 
of Directors for its meetings, and later to Bear Creek Mining, a subsidiary of Kennecott 
Minerals Corporation, for offices. The second floor was used for Nevada Northern Rail­ 
road offices until 1981 when the personnel using the depot were moved to the Kennecott 
offices in McGill. Since that time the second floor has been vacant.

Historical Significance

As the demand for copper rose around the turn of the century there was a renewed inter­ 
est in the copper resources in White Pine County and particularly around the town of 
Ely. One obstacle to making this copper available was transportation: there was no 
way to transport ore from the mine sites to areas with enough water resources for smelt­ 
ing, and the community of Ely did not have transportation systems necessary to carry 
processed ore to refineries in the East.

In 1902 Mark Requa, manager of the Eureka-Palisades Railroad, set in motion his plan to 
provide a shortline railroad to transport the copper ore mined near Ely and he invested 
$150,000 in the White Pine Copper Company. In 1904, Requa consolidated the White Pine 
Copper Company with the Boston and Nevada Copper Company to form the Nevada Consolidated
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The building is divided into distinct horizontal divisions. A pronounced stone belt course 
painted white separates the first and second stories. While the ground level is stone, the 
exterior of the second story is plaster-coated.

On the north side of the building, at the first floor level, a long and narrow shed roof 
supported by brackets covers the entranceways, providing shelter for passengers and baggage. 
This side of the building has also been fitted with a "shark's tooth" iron rail to discour­ 
age loitering.

Windows are primarily two-over-two light, double hung, with simple wood surrounds. Ground 
level windows are topped with a flat stone lintel. Other window types include rectangular 
four light windows, and small single light double windows. A predominant feature projecting 
from the north side of the building is a two-story slanted bay window. Door types vary and 
include both solid paneled and glass and paneled, single and double doors.

Alterations include the placement of storm windows on the south face of the building and the 
addition of the "shark's tooth" iron rail.

In summary, the East Ely Railroad Depot has retained its high design quality, almost un­ 
touched. As can be seen by the 1917 building plans and the 1983 photos, the exterior of 
the building has remained basically unchanged and in an excellent state of preservation.

Interior:

The interior of the building is also remarkably preserved, and has sustained minimal alter­ 
ation; original room divisions and other construction features have been maintained.

Modifications within the building occurred in approximately 1918, when the interior of the 
express room was remodeled to include additional counters and shelving. Use of the building 
has historically been office space on the second floor and passenger/freight services on the 
first floor.

Originally, part of the first floor, the second floor hallway and staircase, and second 
floor offices on the north side were decorated with a light-wood wainscoting which covered 
approximately the lower 4 feet of the walls. The wainscoting was finished with a dark brown 
paint in a simulated wood grain pattern, and then varnished. The remainder of the walls 
are painted stucco. Apparently the original color was a light slate gray; however, the walls 
were later repainted institutional green. At that time, portions of the wainscoting, door 
and window trim were also painted over. Both story floors are laid with linoleum.

The building was originally steam heated through the use of a coal-fired boiler. Portions 
of the heating system have been'converted to electric base-board heat. Much of the original 
wiring is in place, with several light "switches" being turn-type. The majority of the 
lighting fixtures have been replaced with florescent tube lighting to accommodate office 
worker needs. Many of the ornate door handles, plates, and locks are, however, original 
hardware.

r
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The second floor restroom is marked by an elevated platform for each water closet. One of 
these is located in a unique position, directly below a "tunnel" skylight. The tunnel is 
lined with narrow, horizontal wooden slats.

There are several items which are unique to the use of the building, including the construc­ 
tion of two back-to-back vaults (Herring-Hall Martin Safe Company, Distributor: Inter- 
Mountain Safe and Lock Co. from Salt Lake, Utah) in the northwest portion of the second 
floor. A series of mail distribution boxes are also located there, just outside the freight 
department door. Offices on the second floor were also located in an interesting pattern, 
whereby the General Manager could see through the center of every office (east to west).

As noted earlier, the first floor served the needs of freight and passengers. The east 
half, which was devoted to passengers was divided in half by a wall and the ticket office. 
The west half of the room was devoted to a women's waiting and restroom area, and the east 
half of the room was devoted to a men's waiting area. The men's area still contains the 
original train scheduling board. Access to the second floor is provided by a set of wooden 
stairs with wainscoting along the walls.
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Attached are 5x7 inch Black and White photographs as follows: 

East Ely Depot Building (1983)

1. South elevation as viewed from the terminus of llth Street East
2. South and East Elevations.
3. North and West Elevations.
4. South and West Elevations.

East Ely Depot Plans - June 30, 1917.

5. Sheet 1 - Foundation Plan
6. Sheet 2 - First Floor Plan
7. Sheet 3 - Second Floor Plan
8. Sheet 4 - Roof Plan
9. Sheet 5 - Front Elevation

10. Sheet 6 - West Side Elevation
11. Sheet 6 - East Side Elevation
12. Sheet 6 - East and West Elevations.
13. Additional Sheet - Cashier's Office Counter
14. Same sheet - close-up detail.

Remodeling Plans for Express Room - July 24, 1918.

16. through 18.

Slides of the interiors are available.
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Copper Company. Surveyors identified a feasible railraod route which ran from the copper 
mine seven miles west of Ely, through Ely to a site 13 miles north of Ely which would be 
used for smelting the copper, and then an additional 163 miles north where it connected 
with the Southern Pacific line at the new station named "Cobre".

Work on the track was begun September 9, 1905, and the line between Cobre and Ely was 
completed September 29, 1906. The 176 miles of track was put down in a little over a 
year. The remaining seven miles of track from Ely to Ruth took two years to complete. 
The 183.27 miles of the line was fully operational on April 16, 1908, under the super­ 
vision of Nevada Consolidated Copper Company. The passenger depot and freight house, 
built in East Ely in 1907, and the transportation office built ten years later, consti­ 
tuted the original Nevada Northern Railroad yards.

The coming of the railroad was not totally popular in Ely. Some feared the railroad would 
end Ely's isolation and bring undesirables into the area. Others were annoyed by the 
railroad's location of its yards in East Ely, one mile east of the main community, and its 
appropriation of property along the right of way. The railroad's decision to build the 
yards in East Ely was hotly contested by residents of Ely. They claimed it added freight 
cost and inconvenienced the community. When the railroad sold lots up hill from the depot 
to its employees and established Ely City, residents of Ely resorted to guarding their 
water supply with shot guns to protect it from the new community. Only after residents 
of Ely sued the railroad did it change the depot's name to East Ely. Although the geo­ 
graphic distinction between Ely and East Ely no longer exist, the latter still retains 
its own post office and identity.

On the positive side, in addition to transporting ore to the smelter and copper to market, 
the railroad benefited all sectors of the county's economy. It provided freight and pas­ 
senger services which connected White Pine County to the rest of the world, stimulated 
the county's agricultural industry allowing cattle and wool to be shipped to feed lots 
and markets. It was also responsible for increased real estate values in Ely, and brought 
fuel oil and goods to county residents.

Between 1906 and 1941 Nevada Northern carried 4,661,976 passengers. Passenger services 
included transporting school children, carrying workers to and from the mill, and daily 
runs to Cobre where passengers could get connections to routes all over the United States. 
Passengers service ceased in 1941.

Ownership of the Nevada Northern Railroad was transferred to Kennecott when that company 
took over Consolidated Copper's holdings in 1933. By 1958, Kennecott Copper Company had 
acquired all of the major copper reserves in the county, the concentrating and smelting 
operation, and the railroad. Ely, Ruth, and McGill developed into company towns. At its 
peak, the Nevada Mines Division of Kennecott Copper Company was producing as much as 5 
percent of the nation's new copper. During that time, Nevada Northern ran fifty-four 
trains a day carrying freight and passengers to and from Ely. Prior to World War II, 
almost all incoming freight for White Pine County came by rail. Following the war, motor 
freight replaced much of the incoming rail freight services for the area. Until June 1983, 
freight service was provided on a bi-weekly basis. In June a temporary embargo was placed 
on the shortline and freight service will halt for at least six months. Today, the Nevada
Northern is the only operational shortline railroad in Nevada.. f| jr
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Arch it e c tura1 Significance

The Nevada Northern Railroad Passenger Depot at East Ely, built in 1907, is part of the 
original Nevada Northern Yards. Its appearance remains much the same as it did in the 
early 1900s.

The East Ely Depot is architecturally significant for its high design quality. This Period 
Revival building is an interesting vernacular form which incorporates elements from the 
Mission Revival and Renaissance Revival. The depot, with its symmetrical formality, 
conveys an aura of dignity and restraint. Its overall effect depends primarily on mass, 
volume and scale, rather than enriched or decorative detail. Dominant features include 
a high pitch hip roof with broad planes, a rusticated stone base, and a curvilinear gable 
over both the north and south entrances.

The depot remains basically unchanged. It evokes a past era when the railroad was of 
great importance to the life of the town, and the building was a symbol of this importance.

r
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northeasterly direction along the north lines of Blocks 3 and 4 of the Ely City 
Townsite, thence approximately 150 feet North 90° from this line to the point of 
beginning.
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